
  Page 1 
 

SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICT 

Post Office Box 339, Oceano, California  93475-0339 
1600 Aloha, Oceano, California 93445-9735 

Telephone (805) 489-6666  FAX (805) 489-2765 
www.sslocsd.us 

 
 

AGENDA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

VIRTUAL ZOOM MEETING 
Please click the link below to join the webinar: 

 
Wednesday, December 2, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 

 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82030135947?pwd=NW01dnUwR1JvbXBZTmdCUUQ0Y3MxUT09 

Passcode: 555159 
 

Or Telephone: 
    Dial (for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 

1 669 900 6833 
1 408 638 0968 
1 346 248 7799 
1 253 215 8782 

 
Webinar ID: 820 3013 5947 

Passcode: 555159 
 

Or iPhone one-tap :  
    US: +16699006833,,82030135947#,,,,,,0#,,555159#  or 

+14086380968,,82030135947#,,,,,,0#,,555159#  
    International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kd26H12R2k 

 
Board Members                                                             Agencies 
Caren Ray Russom, Chair                   City of Arroyo Grande 
Jeff Lee, Vice Chair       City of Grover Beach 
Linda Austin, Director                  Oceano Community Services District 
 
Alternate Board Members  
Karen Bright, Director           City of Grover Beach 
Lan George, Director       City of Arroyo Grande 
Shirley Gibson, Director       Oceano Community Services District 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

http://www.sslocsd.us/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82030135947?pwd=NW01dnUwR1JvbXBZTmdCUUQ0Y3MxUT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kd26H12R2k


  Page 2 
 

3. AGENDA REVIEW 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT APPEARING ON AGENDA 
 

Public Participation: 
 
In order to prevent and mitigate the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, the District, in 
accordance with Executive Order N-29-20, will not make available a physical location from 
which members of the public may observe the meeting and offer public comment. Remote 
public participation is allowed in the following ways: 
 
Community members are encouraged to submit agenda correspondence in advance of 
the meeting via email to the District Secretary at amy@sslocsd.us prior to the 
meeting and will be published on the District website. Agenda correspondence received 
less than 3 hours before the meeting start time may not be posted until after the meeting. 
Members of the public may watch the meeting either on cable Channel 20 or as streamed 
on SLOSPAN https://slo-span.org/static/index.php 
 
Alternatively, members of the public may watch the meeting and speak during general 
Public Comment or on a specific agenda item by logging in to the Zoom webinar using the 
information provided above. Please use the “raise hand” feature to indicate your desire to 
provide public comment. Each speaker will be allowed three minutes to provide input. 
 
This public comment period is an invitation to members of the community to present 
comments, thoughts or suggestions on matters not scheduled on this agenda.  Comments 
should be limited to those matters which are within the jurisdiction of the District.  The 
Brown Act restricts the Board from taking formal action on matters not published on the 
agenda.  In response to your comments, the Chair or presiding Board Member may: 

• Direct Staff to assist or coordinate with you. 
• Direct Staff to place your issue or matter on a future Board meeting 

agenda. 
Please adhere to the following procedures when addressing the Board: 

• Comments should be limited to three (3) minutes or less. 
• Your comments should be directed to the Board as a whole and not 

directed to individual Board members. 
• Slanderous, profane or personal remarks against any Board Member, Staff 

or member of the audience shall not be permitted 
Any writing or document pertaining to an open-session item on this agenda which is 
distributed to a majority of the Board after the posting of this agenda will be available for 
public inspection at the time the subject writing or document is distributed.  The writing or 
document will be available for public review in the offices of the Oceano CSD, a member 
agency located at 1655 Front Street, Oceano, California.  Consistent with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act (ADA) and California Government Code §54954.2, requests for 
disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, may 
be made by a person with a disability who requires modification or accommodation in order 
to participate at the above referenced public meeting by contacting the District 
Administrator or Bookkeeper/Secretary at (805) 481-6903.  So that the District may 
address your request in a timely manner, please contact the District two business days in 
advance of the meeting. 

 

mailto:amy@sslocsd.us
https://slo-span.org/static/index.php


  Page 3 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

The following routine items listed below are scheduled for consideration as a group.  Each 
item is recommended for approval unless noted.  Any member of the public who wishes 
to comment on any Consent Agenda item may do so at this time.  Any Board Member may 
request that any item be withdrawn from the Consent Agenda to permit discussion or to 
change the recommended course of action.  The Board may approve the remainder of the 
Consent Agenda on one motion. 
 
5A.  Approval of Warrants  
5B. Approval of Meeting Minutes of November 18, 2020  
 

6. ACTION ITEMS:  
 

6A. AUTHORIZE THE DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT 
CHANGE ORDER TO MP ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC. FOR THE 
DIGESTER No. 2 CLEANING PROJECT 

 
Recommendation: Authorize the District Administrator to approve a Contract 
Change Order in the amount of $173,219 for a total potential project amount of 
$336,609. 
 

6B. WWTP REDUNDANCY PROJECT UPDATE 
 
Recommendation: Receive and File.  

 
6C. DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR AND PLANT OPERATIONS REPORT 

  
Recommendation:  Receive and File. 

 
7. BOARD MEMBER COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT: 
 

The next regularly scheduled Board Meeting will be held December 16, 2020, at 
6:00 pm. This meeting will be held either virtually via ZOOM or depending on the 

status of the COVID-19 Emergency at the Grover Beach City Hall, Council 
Chamber, 154 South Eighth Street, Grover Beach, California 93433 

 
 



VENDOR BUDGET LINE ITEM DETAIL WARRANT NO. ACCT ACCT BRKDN TOTAL
ARAMARK UNIFORMS 11/06; 11/13; 11/20 112520-4948 7025 836.79 836.79
AT&T COMMUNICATIONS 11/11/20-12/10/20 4949 7013 453.26 453.26
AUTOSYS, INC. SCADA 2730; 2728 4950 20-7060 1,636.70 1,636.70
BRENNTAG PLANT CHEMICALS BPI96565; BPI96564 4951 8050 11,832.14 11,832.14
CANNON STRUCTURE MAINTENANCE PRIMARY CLARIFIER 2 4952 26-8065 213.00 213.00
CARQUEST AUTOMOTIVE OCTOBER 2020 4953 8032 12.66 12.66
CITY OF GROVER BEACH AGENCY BILLING JULY TO OCTOBER 2020 4954 7081 7,386.25 7,386.25
FARM SUPPLY EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 79701 4955 8030 91.21 91.21
FERGUSON EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 8869850; 8843719 4956 8030 220.04 220.04
GRAINGER EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 9704334391 4957 8030 249.28 249.28
I.I. SUPPLY SAFETY SUPPLIES 73216; 73499 4958 8056 90.07 287.33

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 73527;73217 8030 197.26
JONES & MAYER GENERAL COUNSEL OCTOBER 2020 4959 7071 1,956.50 2,081.50

OUTSIDE COUNSEL 7070 125.00
MR. BACKFLOW EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 112022 4960 8030 120.00 120.00
OILFIELD ENVIRONMENTAL CHEMICAL ANALYSIS 2005207 4961 7078 85.00 85.00
PACE ANALYTICAL CHEMICAL ANALYSIS 1299454 4962 7078 575.00 575.00
PG&E ELECTRICITY 10/09/20-11/08/20 4963 7091 18,235.83 18,235.83
POLYDYNE PLANT CHEMICALS 1497687 4964 8050 9,497.48 9,497.48
R.F MCDONALD CO. EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 258207 4965 8030 1,610.00 1,610.00
RINCON CONSULTANTS, INC. REDUNDANCY COASTAL HAZARDS MONITORING 4966 20-7080 1,711.25 1,711.25
SITE ONE LANDSCAPE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 10756136-001; 104976791-001 4967 8030 107.19 107.19
SM TIRE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE CART TIRES 4968 8030 416.80 416.80
SPRINT CELL PHONES 10/04/20-11/03/20 4969 7014 168.27 168.27
TOTAL 57,826.98 57,826.98         

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: DATE:

Chairman Board Member

Board Member Secretary

SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT
WARRANT REGISTER

12/2/2020

We hereby certify that the demands numbered serially from  112520-4948 to 112520-4969 together with the supporting evidence have been examined, and that they comply with the 
requirements of the SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT.  The demands are hereby approved by motion of the SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICT, together with warrants authorizing and ordering the issuance of checks numbered identically with the particular demands and warrants.

Item 5A.



 

Item 5B. Page 1 
 

 SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICT 

Post Office Box 339, Oceano, California 93475-0339 
1600 Aloha, Oceano, California 93445-9735 

Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 
www.sslocsd.org 

__________ 
SUMMARY ACTION MINUTES 

Virtual Zoom Meeting of Wednesday, November 18, 2020 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
Chair Ray Russom called the meeting to order and recognized a quorum. 
 
Present: Caren Ray Russom, Chair, City of Arroyo Grande 

Jeff Lee, Vice Chair, City of Grover Beach 
Linda Austin, Director, Oceano Community Services District 

      
District Staff: Jeremy Ghent, District Administrator 
  Carrie Raven, Assistant to District Legal Counsel 
  Amy Simpson, District Bookkeeper/Secretary 
  Mychal Jones, Plant Superintendent 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Director Austin led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. AGENDA REVIEW 
 

Approved as presented. 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT APPEARING ON AGENDA 
 
There was no public comment. 

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA: 

 
5A.  Approval of Warrants  
5B. Approval of Meeting Minutes of November 4, 2020  

 
Public Comment:  April Dury commented on the Warrant Register.  
 
Staff noted the correction and voided the missing check numbers. 

 
Motion: Director Lee motioned to approve the Consent Agenda with 

correction as noted. 
Second:  Director Austin  
                                                                                          



 

Item 5B. Page 2 
 

  Action: Approved unanimously by roll call vote. 
             

6. ACTION ITEMS: 
 

6A. PRESENTATION AND APPROVAL OF FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 2020 
FINANCIAL AUDIT 
 
Alex Hom from Moss, Levy & Hartzheim presented the 2020 Financial Audit.  He 
reported that the District received an unmodified clean opinion.  He also reported 
that the negative OPEB number was a result of a large reduction in liability and is 
primarily due to the change in benefits for retirees going forward. 
 
The Board thanked Mr. Hom and District staff.  
 
There was no public comment. 
 
Motion: Director Austin motioned to approve the 2020 Fiscal Year audit. 
Second: Director Lee 
Action: Approved unanimously by roll call vote. 
 

6B. RESOLUTION NO. 2020-424 FOR EXECUTION, DELIVERY AND SALE 
OF WASTEWATER REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION AND 
INCREASING MAXIMUM AUTHORIZED AMOUNT THEREOF TO 
$28,000,000 
 
Administrator Ghent introduced this item with a PowerPoint presentation.  He 
provided background, bid numbers of the two bidders for construction of the 
Redundancy Project, adjusted estimate, discussion on bid results, project 
complexities, rates, loss of bidders, spread between bidders, and Staff opinion. 

 
The Board had a discussion regarding potential savings, adequate funding, cost 
of delaying project for rebidding, and updating the Reserve Policy.  Chair Ray 
Russom recognized staff for the good governance and administrative work that 
has been accomplished recently to receive the AA- rating to the COP’s and the 
unmodified clean opinion of the 2020 Financial Audit. 
 
Alex Handlers from Bartle Wells and Associates was available to answer Board 
questions. 
 
Public Comment:  Eric Christen and Julie Tacker commented on this item.   
 
Motion:  Director Lee motioned to Adopt Resolution No. 2020-424 replacing 

Resolution No. 2020-423 for the execution, delivery and sale of 
wastewater revenue certificates of participation and increasing the 
maximum principal amount to $28,000,000. 

Second: Chair Ray Russom 
 
Action: Approved unanimously by roll call vote. 
 



 

Item 5B. Page 3 
 

6C. AUTHORIZE EXECUTION OF UPDATED CONTRACT FOR WWTP 
REDUNDANCY PROJECT CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES WITH 
MNS ENGINEERS, INC. 

Administrator Ghent presented this item.  He reported that District staff submitted 
the December 10, 2019 Agreement with MNS to USDA for review and USDA is 
requiring a revised agreement, based on Engineers Joint Contract Documents 
(EJCDC) as indicated in the USDA RUS Bulletin 1780-26.  This item fulfils USDA 
requirement. 

There was no public comment. 
 
Motion:   Director Austin motioned to authorize the District Administrator to 

execute an updated contract for Construction Management 
Services for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Redundancy Project 
with MNS Engineers, Inc. in the amount of $2,616,044. 

Second: Director Lee                        
 
Action: Motion approved unanimously by roll call vote. 

 
7. BOARD MEMBER COMMUNICATIONS 
 

Director Lee reported the Grover Beach City Council did award a construction 
contract for a sewer extension along Highland Drive. 
 
Chair Ray Russom commended staff for moving leaps and bounds these last two 
years to get on track with solid fiscal management and reporting as demonstrated 
by the Fiscal Audits.  She thanked staff for everything they do and wished everyone 
a Happy Thanksgiving.  

 
8. ADJOURNMENT: 

 
7:27 p.m. 

 
THESE MINUTES ARE DRAFT AND NOT OFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED BY THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AT A SUBSEQUENT MEETING. 
 



Item 6A. Page 1 
 

 
SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 

SANITATION DISTRICT 
Post Office Box 339 Oceano, California 93475-0339 

1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 
Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 

www.sslocsd.org 
 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Staff Report 

Date:  December 2, 2020 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Jeremy Ghent, District Administrator 
 
Via:  Mychal Jones, Plant Superintendent 
 
Subject: AUTHORIZE THE DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT 

CHANGE ORDER TO MP ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC. FOR THE 
DIGESTER No. 2 CLEANING PROJECT 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Authorize the District Administrator to approve a Contract Change Order in the amount of 
$173,219 for a total potential project amount of $336,609. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
Constructed in 1991, Digester No. 2 is a 425,000-gallon welded steel tank with a diameter of 60 
feet. Over time, grit, sand, and floatable material accumulate in the digester and require removal. 
Digester No. 2 was last cleaned and recoated in 2009/10. 
 
With adoption of the FY 2020/21 Annual Budget the District programmed $965,000 for completing 
the District Digester No. 2 Cleaning & Coating Project.   The table below illustrates the budgeted 
costs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Since a digester is a confined space with pressurized gas and other hazardous conditions, it is 
not feasible to determine the exact amount of sludge and material that has accumulated in the 

Digester Cleaning & Coating Budget
Engineering Design and Inspection 65,000.00$   
Centrifuge 200,000.00$ 
Energy and Chemical Cost 50,000.00$   
Digester Cleaning  400,000.00$ 
Repairs if Idenitified (TBD) 250,000.00$ 

TOTAL 965,000.00$ 



Item 6A. Page 2 
 

tank prior to commencing work. District staff worked with the design consultant to estimate the 
volume using laboratory analyses, field observation, and historical data. Based on these results, 
it was estimated that the bottom 5 feet or 25% of the tank would likely consist of sludge and 
accumulated material. The contract was set such that the Contractor’s bid price was based on an 
assumed volume of sludge (The bottom 5 feet of the tank, or 105,750 gallons). The contract 
required (TASK #3) that prior to beginning work, and once the tank was safely degassed, the 
Contractor and Staff would open and measure the actual volume of sludge in the tank to confirm 
the estimates. 
 
In October 2020, the District received bids for cleaning of the Digester. MP Environmental 
Services, Inc. was awarded the contract in the amount of $142,078, and construction commenced 
on November 16, 2020.  
 
On November 24, 2020, Staff and the contractor performed measurement of the sludge volume 
per the contract. The level of sludge in the bottom of the tank was found to be 7 feet, or 148,050 
gallons. This is approximately 2 feet (42,300 gallons) higher than the estimate. Additionally, upon 
removal of the top hatch of the tank, a floating mat of debris was observed. This mat was not 
anticipated and could not have been estimated prior to opening the digester. The thickness of the 
mat was determined to be 5 feet, which contributes an additional 105,750 gallons of material to 
be processed by the Contractor. The total contract price must be adjusted to reflect the actual 
conditions found in the digester. 
 

 
 
FISCAL CONSIDERATION: 
 
The existing contract amount is for $142,078. The established contract unit price for removing 
and processing solids is $1.17 per gallon. Based on prior District digester cleaning projects, and 
Staff and consultant investigation of other local projects, this is a competitive unit price. The 
additional 148,050 gallons of solid material in the digester results in an increase in contract 
amount of $173,219.   
 
Adequate budget is included in the Adopted Budget for FY 2020/21, under Fund 26, Account No. 
26-8065, Digester Cleaning & Coating. 
 



Item 6A. Page 3 
 

 
Attachments: 
 

MP Environmental Services, Inc. Executed Contract 



Attachment Item 6A. Page1



Attachment Item 6A. Page2



Attachment Item 6A. Page3



Attachment Item 6A. Page4



Attachment Item 6A. Page5



Attachment Item 6A. Page6



Attachment Item 6A. Page7



Attachment Item 6A. Page8



Attachment Item 6A. Page9



Attachment Item 6A. Page10



Attachment Item 6A. Page11



Attachment Item 6A. Page12



Attachment Item 6A. Page13



Attachment Item 6A. Page14



Attachment Item 6A. Page15



Attachment Item 6A. Page16



Item 6B. Page 1 
 

 
SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 

SANITATION DISTRICT 
Post Office Box 339 Oceano, California  93475-0339 

1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 
Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 

www.sslocsd.org 
 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Staff Report 

Date:  December 2, 2020 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Jeremy Ghent, District Administrator 
 
Subject: WWTP REDUNDANCY PROJECT UPDATE 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Receive and file project update.  

BACKGROUND: 

The District has been working to develop the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) Redundancy 
Project, the largest capital improvements project the District has undertaken since the 1986 
WWTP Improvements. The project is intended to allow major process units to be removed from 
service for maintenance or repairs without risking violation of effluent permit limits.  
 
In February 2019, the District retained MKN & Associates, Inc. (MKN) for Project Management 
services, including assistance with completion of the USDA Department of Rural Development 
loan application and assistance in completing the requirements of the conditional Coastal 
Development Permit. Kennedy Jenks, the District’s design engineer for the project, completed the 
project design in April 2019. Bidding was put on hold while the District navigated the application 
process with USDA Rural Development. The process ultimately took 15 months through USDA 
engineering, financial, and environmental review, including consultation with US Fish and Wildlife 
Service. At each sign of potential delay, the District reviewed the potential cost of project delay 
against the benefit of the loan from USDA and decided to move forward with the loan application. 
In June 2020, USDA Rural Development issued a letter of conditions indicating a loan in the 
amount of $4,464,000 at a maximum 1.375% interest rate for a term of 40 years.  
 
While working through the USDA application, the District prequalified five general contractors for 
the WWTP Redundancy Project. The District began the Project bidding in September 2020 and 
bid opening was on November 10, 2020. The District received two bids and a discussion of those 
bid results is provided in the November 18, 2020 Board meeting packet. District staff intends to 
bring a recommendation for award and request to issue Notice of Award to the Board at the 
December 16, 2020 Board meeting. The District’s Project team has been working to prepare for 



Item 6B. Page 2 
 

the construction contract award. The following provides a status update on work completed in 
November and the work in progress which will be completed before construction commences: 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
November WWTP Redundancy Project Progress 

• Bid opening completed 
• Completed coordination with USDA for updated engineering agreement for MNS for 

construction management services 
• Executed contract with Rincon for Project biological monitoring services  
• Submitted resumes for Project Biologists to USDA for forward to USFWS per USFWS 

conditions and received approval. 
• Received authorization to execute contract with Pacific Resources Services for 

Community Workforce Agreement administration 
• Developed financing resolution and resolution authorizing debt issuance, presented to 

Board, and received Board adoption 
• Continued coordination with USDA for submittal of information requested in the June 2020 

letter of conditions 
• Completed updated financial projections after bid opening and determined project 

financial needs and District capability 
• Developed revised resolution authorizing debt issuance, presented to Board, and received 

Board adoption 
• Received AA- Standard and Poor’s Bond Rating 
• Published Preliminary Official Statement on District Finances for Certificates of Deposit 

WWTP Redundancy Project Items to be Completed Prior to Construction 

• MKN/District Bid review – In progress. Estimate completion by November 25 
• USDA Bid Review – Anticipate week of November 30 
• Develop draft construction contract and submit to USDA for review – In progress. 

Anticipate completion week of November 30 
• Meet USDA Letter of Conditions items required prior to construction – In progress, pending 

completion of certification of Emergency Response Plans. Anticipate completion by week 
of November 30 

• Sale of Certificates of Participation – December 3 
• Receive USDA authorization to issue Notice of Award – Anticipate week of December 7 
• Coordination with USDA and Kennedy Jenks for updated engineering agreement for KJ 

for design engineering services during construction – In progress. Anticipate completion 
by week of December 7 

• Closing of COP sale and receipt of funds – December 16 
• District Board Approval for Notice of Award – December 16 
• Issue Notice of Award – December 21 
• Issue Notice to Proceed – January 4 

Redundancy Project Groundbreaking 

• The Redundancy Project represents the largest construction project undertaken by the 
District in the past 40 years and as such we would like to take a moment and celebrate 



Item 6B. Page 3 
 

the accomplishment and the community’s investment.  Staff and MKN are working to 
create a responsible and safe groundbreaking ceremony while adhering to Covid-19 
Safety Protocols.  
 

Attachments: 
 
None 

 



Item 6C. Page 1 
 

SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICT 

Post Office Box 339 Oceano, California 93475-0339 
1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 

Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 
www.sslocsd.org 

 
 

______________________________________________________________________ 
          Staff Report 

 
 
Date: December 2, 2020 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From: Jeremy Ghent, District Administrator; Mychal Jones, Plant Superintendent 
 
Subject: DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR AND PLANT OPERATIONS REPORT 
 
This report represents ongoing information on the latest District staff activities on major 
capital projects and studies, programmatic initiatives, regional collaboration, 
miscellaneous activities, and Plant Operations.   Updates since the last report are 
provided in italics below: 
 
Capital Projects: 
 
Redundancy Project:   

• Update Provided Item 6B 
 
Central Coast Blue: 

• No Update 
 
Misc: 
 

• None. 
 
Plant Tours:  
 

Suspended due to Covid-19 
 

Tentative Items:  
 

1. Redundancy Project Award 12/16/2020 
2. Review By-Laws and Chair/Vice-Chair Election 1/6/2020 

  



Item 6C. Page 2 
 

Plant Operations Report 
 
During this reporting period (November 1st – November 25th) the District’s facility met its Permit 
limitations as required under the State of California’s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System (NPDES) Permit issued to the District. All analysis was within Permit limitations. 
 

Monthly Plant Data for November 2020 

 
 
Operation and Maintenance Tasks 

• Trimmed dewater well pipe near outfall and installed manhole lid 
• Check and marked Underground Service Alerts 
• Replaced polymer system fittings and hose 
• Repaired leaking Sodium Bisulfite pump in chemical building 
• Installed plug in upper digester supernatant line 
• Isolated secondary digester in preparation of Digester No. 2 Cleaning Project 
• Cleaned area surrounding rental centrifuge 
• Replaced insulation on chemical heater hose 
• Potholed near primary digester to locate water leak 
• Installed ventilation fan on backup chemical control box to alleviate heat 
• Troubleshot backup chlorine system error 
• Troubleshot influent flow meter 
• Performed a sludge blanket sample for the Digester No. 2 Cleaning Project 
• Petroleum Solids Control, Inc. 

o Performed monthly maintenance on rental centrifuge 
o Troubleshot lube pump on rental centrifuge 

• Removed and reinstalled secondary chlorine system 
 
Work Orders Completed 

• Performed algae control on all clarifiers 
• Performed annual wet weather preparation 
• De-ragged both primary clarifier sludge pumps 
• Calibrated backup chemical systems 
• Performed preventative maintenance on 

o Fume hood in bathrooms, influent pump room, main control center building, and 
cogeneration building 

o Plant carts 
o Clarifier drives 

 
 

November 2020
INF Flow 

MGD

INF Peak 
Flow 
MGD

INF BOD 
mg/L

EFF BOD 
mg/L

BOD % 
Removal

INF TSS 
mg/L

EFF TSS 
mg/L

TSS % 
Removal

Fecal 
Coliform 
MPN/100

mL

Chlorine 
Usage 

lbs/day

Low 2.11 3.3 495 19.3 500 19.3 < 1.8 156
High 2.62 4.5 627 25.4 692 24.3 33 438
Average 2.38 3.75 535 18.9 96.5 594 22.4 96.2 7.3 294
Nov. 2019 AVG 2.38 3.66 459 16.6 96.4 426 26 93.9 12.3 273
Limit 5.0 40/60/90 >80 40/60/90 >80 2000



Item 6C. Page 3 
 

Training 
No training this reporting period 
 
Call Outs 
November 24th, 4:47 PM – High ORP Alarm. Operations staff responded and inspected the 
SCADA system trends and disinfection system. Appeared to have been a false alarm. All 
processes were operating normally.  
 
November 25th, 6:50 AM – High ORP Alarm. Operations staff responded and inspected the 
SCADA system trends and disinfection system. This alarm was caused by very low morning flows 
resulting in higher chlorine dosages even with the chlorine dosage at the minimum setpoint.  
 
 
 
 


	AGENDA 12-02-2020
	ITEM 5A WARRANT REGISTER 12.02-2020
	03.20.19

	ITEM 5B MINUTES OF 2020 11.18
	ITEM 6A A Staff Report Digester Cleaning Change Order
	SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY

	ITEM 6A. ATTACHMENT
	ITEM 6B Staff Report WWTP Redundancy Status Dec2020
	SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY

	ITEM 6C. DISTRICT ADMIN AND PLANT OPERATIONS REPORT



